
 
 
 

CITY OF COVINGTON 
CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 

www.covingtonwa.gov 
 
Tuesday, July 14, 2015                                                                                                          City Council Chambers 
7:00 p.m.                                                                                            16720 SE 271st Street, Suite 100, Covington 

 
CALL CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING TO ORDER 
 
ROLL CALL/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
PUBLIC COMMUNICATION 

• Legislative Update from Covington Lobbyist (Briahna Taylor & Alex Soldano) 
• Hawk Property Update (Colin Lund) 
• 2015 Citizen of the Year Proclamation 

 
RECEPTION FOR CITIZEN OF THE YEAR 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT Speakers will state their name, address, and organization. Comments are directed to the City Council, 
not the audience or staff. Comments are not intended for conversation or debate and are limited to no more than four minutes 
per speaker.  Speakers may request additional time on a future agenda as time allows.* 
 
APPROVE CONSENT AGENDA 
C-1. Minutes:  June 30, 2015 Special Meeting (Scott) 
C-2. Vouchers (Hendrickson) 
C-3. Execute Task Order for 164th Avenue SE Pedestrian Improvements Design (Vondran) 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
1. Discuss and Consider Ordinance Amending Animal Control Regulations (Hart) 

 
COUNCIL/STAFF COMMENTS - Future Agenda Topics 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT *See Guidelines on Public Comments above in First Public Comment Section 
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION 

• To Review the Performance of a Public Employee Pursuant to RCW 42.30.110(1)(g) 
• To Discuss Potential Litigation Pursuant to RCW 42.30.110(1)(i)  

 
ADJOURN 
 
 
Americans with Disabilities Act – reasonable accommodations provided upon request a minimum of 24 hours in advance 
(253-480-2400). 

http://www.covingtonwa.gov/�


Consent Agenda Item C-1 
Covington City Council Meeting 

Date:  July 14, 2015   
 
SUBJECT: APPROVAL OF MINUTES:  JUNE 30, 2015 CITY COUNCIL SPECIAL 

MEETING MINUTES 
 
RECOMMENDED BY:  Sharon G. Scott, City Clerk 
 
ATTACHMENT(S):  Proposed Minutes 
 
PREPARED BY:  Joan Michaud, Senior Deputy City Clerk 
 
EXPLANATION:  
 
ALTERNATIVES:   
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  
 
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:    Ordinance   _____ Resolution     X     Motion              Other  
 

Councilmember __________ moves, Councilmember ___________ 
seconds, to approve the June 30, 2015 City Council Special 
Meeting Minutes. 

1 of 70



Unapproved Draft–June 30, 2015 Special Meeting Minutes 
Submitted for Approval:  July 14, 2015 
 

 1 

City of Covington 
City Council Special Meeting Minutes 

Tuesday, June 30, 2015 
 
(This meeting was recorded and will be retained for a period of six years from the date of the 
meeting). 
 
The Special Meeting of the City Council of the City of Covington was called to order in the City 
Council Chambers, 16720 SE 271st Street, Suite 100, Covington, Washington, Tuesday, June 30, 
2015, at 7:07 p.m., with Mayor Harto presiding. 
 
COUNCILMEMBERS PRESENT: 
Margaret Harto, Joe Cimaomo, Mark Lanza, Marlla Mhoon, Jim Scott, Sean Smith, and Jeff 
Wagner. 
 
STAFF PRESENT: 
Regan Bolli, City Manager; Don Vondran, Public Works Director; Noreen Beaufrere, Personnel 
Manager; Rob Hendrickson, Finance Director; Kevin Klason, Covington Police Chief; Richard Hart, 
Community Development Director; Karla Slate, Communications & Marketing Manager; Scott 
Thomas, Parks & Recreation Director; Sara Springer, City Attorney; Bob Lindskov, City 
Engineer; Salina Lyons, Principal Planner; Darren Mhoon, Management Assistant; and Sharon 
Scott, City Clerk/Executive Assistant. 
 
Mayor Harto opened the meeting with the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA: 
Council Action:  Councilmember Smith moved and Councilmember Cimaomo seconded to 
approve the Agenda. 
 
Mayor Harto briefed the Council and audience on amendments to the agenda which included   
instructing the audience regarding the two public comment sections on the agenda requesting 
that for this special meeting, comments during the first public comment period be focused on city 
business and comments during the second public comment period be devoted entirely to 
celebrating Covington Police Chief Klason’s retirement. 
 
Mayor Harto also briefed the Council and audience that the second public comment period 
would be moved to immediately following New Business Item No. 4 and then Council/Staff 
Comments would follow Public Comments.  The meeting would then adjourn to the reception 
for Chief Klason. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Wagner moved and Councilmember Scott seconded to approve the 
Agenda as amended.  Vote:  7-0.  Motion carried. 
 
PUBLIC COMMUNICATION: 
1.  Resolution Establishing Sister City Program. 
 

2 of 70



Unapproved Draft–June 30, 2015 Special Meeting Minutes 
Submitted for Approval:  July 14, 2015 
 

 2 

Mayor Harto gave the report on this item. 
 
Councilmembers provided comments. 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 15-05 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
COVINGTON, KING COUNTY, WASHINGTON, ESTABLISHING 
A SISTER CITY AFFILIATIONS POLICY AND CRITERIA FOR 
THE FORMATION OF CITIZEN SISTER CITY COMMITTEES. 

 
Council Action:  Councilmember Lanza moved and Councilmember Scott seconded to 
adopt Resolution No. 15-05, in substantial form as that provided in the agenda packet, to 
establish a sister city program and criteria for the formation of citizen sister city 
associations.  Vote:  7-0.  Motion carried. 
 
2.  Letter of Intent Ceremony to Adopt Tatsuno, Japan as City of Covington’s Sister City. 
 
Mayor Harto introduced this item, and a video was shown providing an overview of Tatsuno, 
Japan.  Mayor Harto invited the Covington Council and Tatsuno Council to join together in front 
of the dais.  Mayor Harto provided remarks and Hajime Kurihara, Mayor of Tatsuno, provided 
remarks.  Both mayors signed the letter of intent and mementos were exchanged. 
 
Council recessed from 7:55 to 8:10 p.m. to allow everyone time to greet the Japanese visitors 
before their departure to Seattle. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT:   
Mayor Harto called for public comments. 
 
Mary Pritchard, 26103 197th Avenue SE, Covington resident, asked Council to consider a ban 
on fireworks in Covington.  Ms. Pritchard also mentioned her disappointment on the absence of a 
reporter from the Covington Reporter Newspaper at such a special meeting. 
 
Mayor Harto directed the audience to the flyers provided in the Council Chambers regarding the 
fireworks regulations in the Kent Fire Department Regional Fire Authority service area. 
 
Greg McClain, 26426 189th Avenue SE, Covington resident, provided comments on his 
concerns regarding the increase in volume and increase in speed of traffic going through the 
Timberlane neighborhood.  
 
George Pearson, 18623 SE265th St, Covington resident, asked Council to consider a ban on 
fireworks in Covington. 
 
There being no further comments, Mayor Harto closed the public comment period. 
 
 

3 of 70



Unapproved Draft–June 30, 2015 Special Meeting Minutes 
Submitted for Approval:  July 14, 2015 
 

 3 

APPROVE CONSENT AGENDA: 
C-1. Minutes:  May 27, 2015 City Council Tri Cities Special Meeting with Black Diamond and 

Maple Valley Minutes; June 9, 2015 City Council Special Joint Study Session with Parks 
& Recreation Commission Minutes; and June 9, 2015 City Council Regular Meeting 
Minutes. 
 

C-2. Vouchers:  Vouchers #32652-32694, including ACH payments and electronic funds 
transfers, in the amount of $164,003.56, dated June 12, 2015; and Paylocity Payroll Checks 
#1003861162-1003861178 inclusive, plus employee direct deposits, in the amount of 
$177,760.23, Dated June 19, 2015. 

 
ORDINANCE NO. 04-15 

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
COVINGTON, KING COUNTY, WASHINGTON GRANTING A 
NON-EXCLUSIVE FRANCHISE TO ASTOUND BROADBAND, 
LLC D/B/A WAVE, TO CONSTRUCT, MAINTAIN, OPERATE, 
REPLACE, AND REPAIR A TELECOMMUNICATIONS SYSTEM 
IN, ACROSS, OVER, ALONG, UNDER, THROUGH, AND BELOW 
CERTAIN DESIGNATED PUBLIC RIGHTS-OF-WAY OF THE CITY 
OF COVINGTON, WASHINGTON, FOR A TEN YEAR TERM.  

 
C-3. Approve Ordinance Adopting Astound Broadband Franchise. 

 
C-4. Accept Grant from Flood Control District. 

 
C-5. Approve Maintenance Facility Lease Renewal. 
 
Council Action:  Mayor Pro Tem Wagner moved and Councilmember Lanza seconded to 
approve the Consent Agenda:  7-0.  Motion carried. 
 
NEW BUSINESS: 
3.  Discuss Selection of Citizen and Honorary Citizen of the Year. 
 
Council Action:  Councilmember Cimaomo moved and Mayor Pro Tem Wagner seconded 
to name Laura Morrissey as Covington’s Citizen of the Year for 2015.  Vote:  7-0.  Motion 
carried. 
 
Council Action:  Mayor Pro Tem Wagner moved and Councilmember Lanza seconded to 
name Kevin Klason as Covington’s Honorary Citizen of the Year for 2015.  Vote:  7-0.  
Motion carried. 
 
4.  Proclamation Recognizing Outgoing Police Chief Kevin Klason. 
 

4 of 70



Unapproved Draft–June 30, 2015 Special Meeting Minutes 
Submitted for Approval:  July 14, 2015 
 

 4 

The Council presented a proclamation to Kevin Klason recognizing and commending him for his 
untiring efforts on behalf of the citizens of the City of Covington as Covington’s Police Chief 
and wishing him a long and healthy retirement.  
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS: 
Mayor Harto called for public comments regarding Chief Klason’s retirement. 
 
Wayne Snoey, Derek Matheson, and Mary Pritchard, provided comments on Chief Klason’s 
retirement and thanked him for his service to the community. 
 
Mayor Harto shared a proclamation from Metropolitan King County Council and presented it to 
Chief Klason for Councilmember Reagan Dunn who could not be in attendance. 
 
Mayor Harto shared a letter from the State of Washington, Office of the Governor, signed by 
Governor Jay Inslee, to Chief Klason thanking him for his service and leadership. 
 
There being no further public comments, Mayor Harto closed the public comment period. 
 
COUNCIL/STAFF COMMENTS: 
Councilmembers and staff discussed Future Agenda Topics and made comments.  
 
ADJOURNMENT: 
There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 9:03 p.m. for a reception to 
recognize outgoing Police Chief Kevin Klason. 
 
Prepared by:      Submitted by:  
 
__________________________________         
Joan Michaud      Sharon Scott 
Senior Deputy City Clerk    City Clerk 
 

5 of 70



Consent Agenda Item C-2 
 Covington City Council Meeting 
 Date:  July 14, 2015 
 
SUBJECT:  APPROVAL OF VOUCHERS  
 
RECOMMENDED BY: Rob Hendrickson, Finance Director 
 
ATTACHMENT(S)

 

:  Vouchers #32695-32742, including ACH payments and electronic funds 
transfers, in the amount of $1,484,125.31, dated June 26, 2015; and Paylocity Payroll Checks 
#1003916801-1003916810 and Paylocity Payroll Checks #1003916886-1003916886 inclusive, 
plus employee direct deposits, in the amount of $174,250.20, dated July 2, 2015. 

PREPARED BY:  Joan Michaud, Senior Deputy City Clerk 
 
EXPLANATION: Not applicable. 
 
ALTERNATIVES: Not applicable. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: Not applicable. 
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:    Ordinance _____ Resolution     X      Motion            Other  

 
Councilmember ___________ moves, Councilmember _________________ 
seconds, to approve for payment Vouchers #32695-32742, including ACH 
payments and electronic funds transfers, in the amount of $1,484,125.31, 
dated June 26, 2015; and Paylocity Payroll Checks #1003916801-
1003916810 and Paylocity Payroll Checks #1003916886-1003916886 
inclusive, plus employee direct deposits, in the amount of $174,250.20, 
dated July 2, 2015. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

6 of 70



7 of 70



8 of 70



9 of 70



10 of 70



11 of 70



12 of 70



13 of 70



14 of 70



15 of 70



16 of 70



17 of 70



Consent Agenda Item C-3 
 Covington City Council Meeting 
 Date:  July 14, 2015 
 
SUBJECT: AUTHORIZE THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE AN AGREEMENT WITH 

GRAY & OSBORNE, INC. FOR THE DESIGN OF 164th AVENUE SE 
PEDESTRIAN IMPROVEMENTS. 

 
RECOMMENDED BY:  Don Vondran, PE, Public Works Director 
 
ATTACHMENT(S): 
1. Gray & Osborne, Inc. Task Order Number 007 
 
PREPARED BY:  Bob Lindskov, City Engineer 
 
EXPLANATION: 
Last year the council added the 164th Avenue SE Pedestrian Improvement project (CIP 1086) to 
the 2015-2016 6 Year TIP.  In addition, council added $90,000 into the 2015 Budget in order to 
design the project.  This Task Order will allow for the design to be completed by Gray & 
Osborne.  Our hopes are that design can be completed this summer, allowing the City to apply 
for a TIB Urban Sidewalk Program grant at the end of August. 
 
The Task Order includes the design of a 5’ separated walkway on the east side of 164th Avenue 
SE between SE 264th Street and just south of SE 269th Street.  The design will also include a 
drainage swale with underdrainage to convey and treat surface water. Once constructed, this will 
provide a continuous separated walkway/sidewalk from Kentwood High School to the Covington 
Library.   
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
We are requesting that the council authorize the agreement in the amount of $92,940 for the 
design services of the 164th Avenue SE Pedestrian Improvement project from SE 269th Street to 
SE 264th Street.  The Task Order amount is close to our independent estimate of $90,000.  The 
balance of $2,940 would be covered from the general fund. 
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:  ____ Ordinance               Resolution       X    Motion             Other  
 

Council member ______________ moves, Council member ______________ 
seconds, to authorize the City Manager to execute Task Assignment Number 
007, as attached hereto, with Gray & Osborne, Inc. for the design of the 164th 
Avenue SE Pedestrian Improvement project. 
 

REVIEWED BY:  City Manager, City Attorney, Finance Director 

18 of 70



ATTACHMENT 1

19 of 70



20 of 70



21 of 70



22 of 70



23 of 70



24 of 70



25 of 70



26 of 70



Agenda Item 1 
 Covington City Council Meeting 
 Date: July 14, 2015  
 
SUBJECT:  AMENDMENTS TO COVINGTON’S MUNICIPAL CODE (CMC) Titles 6 and 18 

FOR ANIMAL CONTROL REGULATIONS 
 
RECOMMENDED BY:  Planning Commission 
                                          
ATTACHMENT(S): 
1. Proposed Ordinance adopting amendments to the animal control regulations with Exhibit A 
2. Comparison of animal control regulations with other cities 
3. Typical lot animal density comparison with neighboring communities 

 
PREPARED BY:  Richard Hart, Director of Community Development 

  Brian Bykonen, Associate Planner & Code Enforcement Officer 
 

EXPLANATION: 
 
Background 
At the request of the City Council, as part of the 2015 Planning Commission Work Program, the 
city staff and planning commission have reviewed our current regulations governing the keeping 
of animals in all residential and commercial zones.  Specifically, staff and the commission 
focused on all domestic animals that are typically kept on residential lots and that can often have 
negative impacts on residential neighborhoods.  We also reviewed animal control ordinances of 
surrounding communities and other cities of similar size, as well as the King County animal 
control regulations. See Attachment 2 and 3. 
 
The city’s current animal control regulations are outdated and somewhat unclear in several 
sections regarding definitions for small animals, fowl, birds, livestock and swine.  Our 
regulations are left over from King County regulations adopted when the city incorporated in 
1997 and have not been comprehensively evaluated and updated in that ensuing 18 years. 
 
Staff concluded the best approach would be to repeal or modify the existing regulations in 
Chapter 6.05, selected definitions in 18.20, and selected provisions in 18.25, 18.31, and 18.80, 
and then replace them with new language.  Many of the same provisions were included in the 
proposed regulations.  All Chapters were modified and amended for consistency.  There are still 
some distinct Chapters of the King County regulations that are applicable to Covington and are 
referenced accordingly.    
 
Proposed Amendment Summary Highlights 
Highlighted below is a summary of the major areas that we have proposed to amend. Attachment 
1, Exhibit A is the proposed version of the animal control regulations as rewritten with all 
changes.     
 
 

27 of 70



Highlights of the recommended code amendments are included below: 
 

6.05.010 to .030 is repealed and replaced with all new language referencing the King County 
animal regulations, including enforcement.  

18.20.065 – A new definition of “domestic animal” is provided. 

18.20.066 – A new definition of “animal unit” is provided. 

18.20.531 – A new definition of “fowl” is provided. 

18.20.599.5 – A new definition of “hive” is provided. 

18.20.695 to .710 – A new definition of “livestock” and “livestock facilities” is provided.    

18.20.1072 – A new definition of “animal shelter” is provided. 

18.25.050 – “Animal shelters” are added to the use table for the Industrial (I) and Regional 
Commercial Mixed Use (RCMU) zoning districts where veterinary clinics are also 
allowed. 

18.25.050 – Kennel and Cattery was added as an allowed use in the Urban Separator (US) zone, 
the R-4, R-6, and R-8 zones by conditional use permit, and the Industrial (I) zone. 

18.31.080 – “Veterinary clinics”, “animal shelters”, “kennels”, and “catteries” are added to the 
use table for the General Commercial (GC) zoning district.   

18.80.015 – New general requirements are provided for domestic animals, kennels, fowl, 
livestock, potbelly pigs, and bees.     

18.80.015 (3) (a) – The number of fowl allowed on lots less than 16,000 sq. ft. is increased to 
five (5) from the currently allowed three (3) on lots less than 20,000 sq. ft. 
with a maximum of fifteen allowed on any residential property.  

18.80.015 (3) (b) – Structures and confinement areas for fowl shall now be ten (10) feet from 
property lines and twenty (20) feet from an adjacent dwelling. 

18.80.015 (3) (c) - Roosters and peafowl will not be permitted within the city limits in the future. 

18.80.017 (2) – Additional standards for nuisances are added to the enforcement provisions.   

18.80.018 – A new section is added for amortization of existing animals that exceed the required 
minimums for compliance and to reduce impacts on residential neighborhoods.  The 
planning director and city attorney have expanded the proposed language beyond 
what was received by the planning commission; however, the intent of the provision 
remains the same.  

 

28 of 70



Review Process 
A SEPA determination of non-significance for the proposed code amendments was issued on 
June 5, 2015, and no comments or appeals were received on the amendments from other state or 
local agencies, or the public.  The State Department of Commerce was also notified for their 60 
day state required review of local ordinance changes on April 30, 2015.  
   
The Planning Commission discussed the proposed changes at public meetings on May 7 and 
May 21, 2015.  The Commission held their required public hearing on June 4, 2015, and several 
individuals attended offering comments both in support of the proposed changes and expressing 
concerns about increased regulation of the keeping of animals.  The Planning Commission made 
one minor change to increase the number of fowl allowed on a typical lot from four (4) to five 
(5).  Most cities in south King County allow from three to six fowl.  Only a limited few allow 
greater than five, including Kent and Renton which allow eight on a typical 8,000 sq. ft. 
residential lot.       
 
At tonight’s city council meeting, council members will review, discuss and consider the 
Planning Commission’s recommendation and proposed new code provisions.  The council may 
approve and adopt the amendments to the city animal control regulations as provided for in 
Attachment 1, modify the Commission recommendation, or refer the regulations back to the 
Commission and staff for further study.   
 
ALTERNATIVES: 

1. Recommend amendments to the proposed ordinance.  
2. Return the issue to city staff and the Planning Commission for further study and analysis. 

 
FISCAL IMPACT:   
None, outside of the minimal staff time to administer and enforce the regulations after adoption.   
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:    X     Ordinance       Resolution         Motion         Other 
 

Council member ____________ moves, Council member _________________ 
seconds, to pass an Ordinance, in substantial form as attached hereto, to 
amend portions of Title 6 and 18 of the Covington Municipal Code relating 
to animal control regulations. 
 

REVIEWED BY:  City Manager; Finance Director; City Attorney. 

29 of 70



ORDINANCE NO. 05-15 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
COVINGTON, KING COUNTY, WASHINGTON AMENDING 
THE CITY OF COVINGTON ANIMAL CONTROL 
REGULATIONS IN CMC TITLES 6 AND 18 RELATING TO 
THE KEEPING OF DOMESTIC ANIMALS, FOWL, 
LIVESTOCK, BEES AND POTBELLY PIGS.  

 
 WHEREAS, Chapter 35A.63 of the Revised Code of Washington (RCW) empowers the 
City of Covington to enact land use and zoning regulations including animal control regulations; 
and  
 

WHEREAS, city staff transmitted the proposed amendments to the Covington animal 
control regulations to the Washington State Department of Commerce on April 30, 2015, as 
required under RCW 36.70A.106, and has received no comments from state agencies; and 

 
WHEREAS, the city’s SEPA Official conducted a SEPA review and issued a 

Determination of Non-Significance on June 5, 2015; and  
 
WHEREAS, amendments to Covington’s Animal Control Regulations were discussed by 

Planning Commission at their May 7, 2015 and May 21, 2015 meeting; and   
 

WHEREAS, on June 4, 2015 the Planning Commission held a duly noticed public 
hearing and considered the amendments to the Animal Control Regulations and forwarded a 
recommendation to approve to the City Council; and  
 

WHEREAS, the proposed amendments are consistent with the goals, objectives, and 
policies of the comprehensive plan; and  

 
WHEREAS, the City Council, upon review of the facts, findings and recommendations 

of the Planning Commission and after reviewing information provided by city staff, find that all 
applicable and substantive requirements of the law have been met, that the adoption of this 
ordinance promotes the public health, safety and general welfare of the community, and that the 
adoption of this ordinance serves the public interest.  
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COVINGTON, KING 
COUNTY, WASHINGTON, DOES ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS: 
 
 Section 1

  

.  The proposed amendments to the Covington Animal Control Regulations in 
CMC Titles 6 and 18 are hereby amended as set forth in the attached Exhibit A, incorporated 
herein. 

 Section 2.  This ordinance shall be in full force and effect five days after publication in 
the city’s newspaper of record.  A summary of this ordinance may be published in lieu of 
publishing the ordinance in its entirety. 

ATTACHMENT 1

30 of 70



 
 
 Section 3.  If any provision of this ordinance, or ordinance modified by it, is determined 
to be invalid or unenforceable for any reason, the remaining provisions of this ordinance and 
ordinances and/or resolutions modified by it shall remain in force and effect. 
 
Passed by the City Council on the 14th day of July, 2015. 

 
_______________________                      
Mayor Margaret Harto 

     
PUBLISHED:  July 17, 2015 
EFFECTIVE:   July 22, 2015 

ATTESTED: 
 
                                          
Sharon Scott, City Clerk 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
_________________________ 
Sara Springer, City Attorney 

31 of 70



1 
 

  Exhibit A 
PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO COVINGTON MUNICIPAL CODE (CMC) 

ANIMAL Control REGULATIONS 
CMC Chapters 6.05, 18.20, 18.25.050, 18.31.080, and 18.80 

 

Chapter 6.05 ANIMAL CONTROL 
 

**CMC 6.05 to be repealed in its entirety and replaced with the following.** 

6.05.010 King County Code adopted—Exceptions—Conflicts. 
(1) The following chapters of the King County Code (KCC) are adopted by reference as if fully 
set forth herein, as the same have been amended by King County Ordinance No. 16861, and as 
they may be amended hereafter, except as otherwise provided for in this Chapter. 

(a) Chapter 11.04, Animal Control Regulations; 
(b) Chapter 11.08, Dog Leash Law; 
(c) Chapter 11.12, Rabies Control; 
(d) Chapter 11.20, Disposition of Fowl and Rabbits; 
(e) Chapter 11.24, Stock Restricted Area; 
(f)  Chapter 11.28, Exotic Animals; and  
(g) Chapter 11.32, Guard Dogs.  

(2) The following exceptions shall be applied to the King County Code chapters adopted by 
reference in this chapter: 

(a) “Animal control authority” means the city or the animal control authority of King 
County, as agent for the city, acting alone or in concert with other municipalities for 
enforcement of the animal control laws of the city, King County, and the state and the 
shelter and welfare of animals. 

(b) Unless the context indicates otherwise, “King County” means the city. 

(c) “County department of planning” means the Covington community development 
department. 

(d) “King County board of appeals” means the Covington City Council; provided, 
however, that at such time as the city may enter into a contract with King County for the 
enforcement of the animal control ordinance, the contract may provide for the use of the 
King County board of appeals in which case the King County board of appeals means 
the King County board of appeals. 

(e) KCC 11.04.010(B) shall provide that if there is a conflict between a provision of the 
KCC and a provision of the Covington Municipal Code, the provision of the Covington 
Municipal Code shall control. 

32 of 70



2 
 

(f) All references in Chapter 11.04 of the KCC to Title 21A of the KCC, which provide for 
the number of animals that may be kept as part of certain land uses, shall be replaced 
with a reference to Title 18 of the CMC. 

(g) KCC 11.04.050(A) shall provide that the applicant for an original animal shelter, 
cattery, pet shop, grooming service, or kennel license shall present to the regional 
animal services section a written statement from the city community development 
department that the establishment of the animal shelter, cattery, pet shop, grooming 
service, or kennel at the proposed site is not in violation of the city zoning code under 
Title 18 CMC, or has a legal nonconforming zoning status, or a conditional use permit 
has been issued for the intended use. 

(h) KCC 11.04.050(B) shall provide that shelters, catteries, pet shops, grooming 
services, and kennels shall comply with the licensing requirements of the Seattle-King 
County Department of Public Health. Subject to applicable restrictions in the city’s 
zoning code in Title 18 CMC, the facilities may board animals as authorized by their 
Seattle-King County Department of Public Health license. 

(3) No portion of this chapter shall be deemed to be exclusive or exhaustive in reference to 
animal control and shall not relieve any person from the duty to observe other and more 
restrictive local, state, or federal provisions.  

(4) The city shall maintain at all times available for review by the general public one copy of King 
County Code chapters adopted by reference in this chapter. 

6.05.020 Enforcement. 
(1) The city manager or designee and the regional animal services section of King County are 
authorized to enforce this chapter and the laws of the state of Washington that pertain to animal 
cruelty, shelter, welfare, and enforcement of control, consistent with the enforcement provisions 
set forth in Title 11 of the King County Code and Chapter 1.30 of the Covington Municipal Code. 

(2) Notwithstanding the existence or use of any other remedy, the city manager or designee 
may seek legal or equitable relief to enjoin acts or practices and abate any conditions that 
constitute a violation of this chapter or other regulations adopted under this chapter. 

[REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK] 

  

33 of 70

http://www.codepublishing.com/wa/kenmore/html/Kenmore11/Kenmore11.html#11�


3 
 

Chapter 18.20 
TECHNICAL TERMS AND LAND USE DEFINITIONS 

 

18.20.005 Scope of chapter.  
This chapter contains definitions of technical and procedural terms used throughout the code 

and definitions of land uses listed in tables in Chapter 18.25 CMC. The definitions in this chapter 

supplement the Standard Industrial Classification Manual (SIC). See Chapter 18.10 CMC for 

rules on interpretation of the code, including use of these definitions. Development standards 

are found in Chapters 18.30 through 18.100 CMC. 

… 

18.20.065 Animal, domestic small.  

“Animal, domestic small” means any animal other than livestock that lives and breeds in a tame 

condition including, but not limited to: dogs, cats, small birds, hares, rabbits, hamsters, guinea 

pigs, nonvenomous reptiles and amphibians, and other animals normally associated with a 

dwelling unit which are kept as household pets. or animals considered to be predatory or wild 

which are kept outside a dwelling unit all or part of the time. Animals considered predatory or 

wild, excluding those in zoo animal breeding facilities, shall be considered small animals when 

they are taken into captivity for the purposes of breeding, domestication, training, hunting or 

exhibition. 

18.20.066 Animal unit. “Animal unit” means one equine or bovine, two (2) ponies, or five (5) 

small livestock. 

… 

18.20.095 Beehive. “Beehive” means a structure designed to contain one colony of honey bees 

(Apis mellifera). 

… 

18.20.531 Fowl. “Fowl” means domesticated Anseriformes (such as ducks, geese, swans, and 

similar) and Galliformes (such as chickens, turkeys, pheasants, and similar) which are legally 

held in captivity. 

… 

34 of 70

http://www.codepublishing.com/wa/covington/html/Coving18/Coving1825.html#18.25�
http://www.codepublishing.com/wa/covington/html/Coving18/Coving1810.html#18.10�
http://www.codepublishing.com/wa/covington/html/Coving18/Coving1830.html#18.30�
http://www.codepublishing.com/wa/covington/html/Coving18/Coving18100.html#18.100�


4 
 

18.20.599.5 Hive. “Hive" means a manufactured receptacle or container prepared for the use of 

bees that includes movable frames, combs, and substances deposited into the hive by bees.  

… 

18.20.695 Livestock. “Livestock” means any domestic equine, sheep, goats, bovine, llamas, 

alpacas, emus, ostriches, and swine, or similar animals.

(1) Cattle; 

 grazing animals kept either in open 

fields or structures for training, boarding, home use, sales, or breeding and production, including 

but not limited to: 

(2) Riding and draft horses; 

(3) Hogs, excluding pigs weighing less than 120 pounds and standing 20 inches or less at the 
shoulder which are kept as pets or small animals; 

(4) Sheep; and 

(5) Goats. 

18.20.697 Livestock facility. “Livestock facility” means an accessory building used to house 

livestock. 

18.20.700 Livestock, large. “Livestock, large” means livestock with a weight of 200 pounds or 

more. cattle, horses, and other livestock generally weighing over 500 pounds. 

18.20.710 Livestock, small. “Livestock, small” means livestock weighing less than 200 pounds. 

hogs, excluding pigs weighing under 120 pounds and standing 20 inches or less at the shoulder 

which are kept as household pets or small animals, sheep, goats, miniature horses, llamas, 

alpaca and other livestock generally weighing under 500 pounds. 

… 

18.20.1072 Shelter, animal. “Shelter, animal” means a facility that is used to house or contain 

stray, homeless, abandoned or unwanted animals and that is owned, operated, or maintained 

by a public body, an established humane society, animal welfare society, society for the 

prevention of cruelty to animals, or other nonprofit organization or person devoted to the 

welfare, protection, and humane treatment of animals.  

35 of 70



5 
 

 

[REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]  

36 of 70



6 
 

Chapter 18.80 
DEVELOPMENT STANDRARDS - DOMESTIC ANIMALS, LIVESTOCK, FOWL AND BEES, 

HOME OCCUPATION, HOME INDUSTRY 

Sections: 
18.80.010    Purpose. 
18.80.015    General requirements. 
18.80.017    Other requirements, nuisances, and enforcement. 
18.80.020    Repealed. Animal regulations—Small animals. 
18.80.030    Repealed. Animal regulations—Livestock—Purpose. 
18.80.040    Repealed. Animal regulations—Livestock—Densities. 
18.80.050    Repealed. Animal regulations—Livestock—Farm management plans. 
18.80.060    Repealed. Animal regulations—Livestock—Management standards. 
18.80.070    Repealed. Animal regulations—Livestock—Building requirements. 
18.80.080    Repealed. Animal regulations—Livestock—Education and enforcement. 
18.80.090    Repealed. Existing livestock operations. 
18.80.100    Home occupation. 
18.80.110    Home industry. 
18.80.120    Protection of agricultural uses. 

 

18.80.010 Purpose.  
The purpose of this chapter is to enhance and preserve the compatibility between neighboring 
properties by regulating the scope and intensity of accessory uses or activities. 

18.80.015 General requirements.  

The keeping of domestic animals, livestock, fowl, and bees is permitted outright as an 

accessory use to any primary use, in each case subject to all of the following requirements. 

 

(1)  Domestic animals which are kept indoors as household pets in aquariums, terrariums, 

cages or similar containers are permitted in all zoning districts and shall not be limited in 

number, except as provided in Chapter 6.05 CMC. Other domestic animals kept indoors or 

outdoors shall be limited to five (5), of which not more than three (3) may be unaltered cats or 

dog. 

(2) Kennels and catteries within the city must comply with the following, in addition to the 

provisions adopted under Chapters 6.05 CMC, 18.25.050 CMC, and 18.31.080 CMC. 

(a) For kennels located on residential zoned sites: 

37 of 70

http://www.codepublishing.com/wa/covington/html/Coving18/Coving1880.html#18.80.050�


7 
 

 (i) The minimum site area shall be five (5) acres; and 

(ii) Structures housing animals and outdoor animal runs shall be a minimum 
distance of one hundred (100) feet from property lines abutting residential 
zones; and 

(iii) The maximum number of adult dogs shall be ten (10). 

(b) For kennels located on nonresidential zoned sites, run areas shall be completely 
surrounded by an eight-foot (8 ft) solid wall or fence and are subject to the 
requirements in Section 11.04.060 King County Code, Section 18.25.050 CMC, and 
Section 18.31.080 CMC ; and 

(3) Fowl are permitted in all zoning districts, except the Town Center district, with no required 

minimum lot size, subject to the following:   

(c) Catteries shall be on sites of 35,000 square feet or more, and buildings used to 
house cats shall be a minimum distance of fifty (50) feet from property lines abutting 
residential zones.  

(a) Five (5) fowl are allowed on lots less than 16,000 square feet. One (1) additional 

fowl is allowed for every additional 4,000 square feet of lot size. 

 

(b) Structures and confinement areas housing fowl shall be located a minimum of ten 

(10) feet from all property lines and twenty (20) feet away from any dwelling unit on 

an adjacent lot.  

 

(c) Roosters and peafowl are not permitted. 

 

(4) Livestock is permitted in all zoning districts, except the Town Center district, subject to the 

following:   

(a) The minimum lot size for keeping livestock is 20,000 square feet for the first   

animal, and 15,000 square feet for each additional animal unit;  

b) All livestock facilities and outdoor confinement areas shall be located a minimum of 

ten (10) feet from all property lines and a minimum of (30) feet from any dwelling unit 

on an adjacent property and shall be subject to the following additional restrictions: 

38 of 70



8 
 

(i) Grazing areas may project to property lines; 

(ii) Swine shall not be kept within fifty (50) feet of all property lines and dwelling 

units, with the exception of miniature potbelly pigs in accordance with subsection 

(8) of this section; and 

(iii) Doorways and other openings to the livestock facilities and outdoor 

confinement shall be oriented away from neighboring properties unless no 

alternative location exists that does not create an impact to neighbors; 

(5) All livestock facilities, structures housing fowl, confinement areas, and grazing areas shall be 

cleaned of manure or refuse on a regular basis. The director shall have the authority to require 

more frequent cleaning if the manure or refuse becomes a nuisance;  

(6) No portion of a livestock facility, structure housing fowl, confinement area, and/or grazing 

area shall be located within a critical area and or critical area buffer unless permitted pursuant to 

Chapter 18.65 CMC: 

(a) A Farm Conservation Plan prepared by the King Conservation District shall be 

submitted to the city for any livestock facilities, structures housing fowl, confinement 

areas, and/or grazing areas located on properties with critical areas and critical area 

buffers. The Farm Conservation Plan shall be prepared in accordance with Chapter 

18.65 CMC, Section 21A.30.045 (A), (B), (C), and (D) King County Code, and Section 

21.30.060 King County Code. 

(b) All existing livestock facilities, structures housing fowl, confinement areas, and 

grazing areas located within critical areas or critical area buffers shall provide a Farm 

Conservation Plan to the city within two (2) years of the adoption of this chapter.  

(7) All livestock and fowl shall be kept within an enclosure or a fence of sufficient strength and 

construction to prevent the escape of or injury to the livestock and fowl.  

(8)  Miniature potbelly pigs, commonly known as the Vietnamese, Chinese, or Asian potbelly 

pigs (Sus scrofa bittatus), may be kept as domestic animals in accordance with subsection (1) 

of this section; provided, each potbelly pig is not greater than twenty-two (22) inches in height at 

the shoulder or no more than one hundred fifty (150) pounds in weight. Swine that exceeds 

39 of 70



9 
 

these limitations shall be considered livestock and shall meet setback requirements in 

subsection (4) of this section. The maximum number of potbelly pigs kept as domestic animals 

shall be two (2) per household; 

(9) Bees may be kept subject to the following regulations: 

(a)  Properties housing bees shall be a minimum of 10,000 square feet in area. 

(b)  Two (2) hives are permitted if the subject property is less than 20,000 square feet in 

area. One (1) additional hive is allowed for each additional 10,000 square feet in lot size. 

(c)  Hives shall be a minimum of twenty-five feet (25 ft) from each property line, with the 

hive(s) entrance(s) facing away from the nearest property line.  

(10)  The keeping of domestic animals, livestock, fowl, and bees for any for-profit venture shall 

comply with the requirements of Chapters 5.10 CMC, 18.80.100 CMC, and 18.80.110 CMC.  

(d)  All hives shall be registered with the Washington State Department of Agriculture, 

pursuant to RCW 15.60.021, prior to April of each year in which they are kept. 

(11)  The keeping of domestic animals, livestock, fowl, and bees is permitted on properties 

without a primary use if two (2) or more lots are conjoined and owned by the same landowner, 

and one of the properties contains a primary use.  

18.80.017 Other requirements, nuisances, and enforcement.  

(1) The raising and keeping of domestic animals, livestock, fowl or bees is also subject to 

Chapters 6.05 CMC, 8.20 CMC, and 8.30 CMC. 

(2) The following domestic animal, livestock, fowl, or bee uses under this chapter shall also be 

considered nuisances: 

(a) Causes damages to the property of anyone other than its owner; 

(b) Is vicious in nature;  

(c) Causes unreasonable and continuous odor at the adjacent property line;  

40 of 70



10 
 

(d) Causes unsanitary conditions in enclosures or surroundings; provided, 

however, that this subsection is not violated if the alleged nuisance occurs by the 

accumulation of expected amounts of manure, urine, or other animal waste 

products and the manure is not allowed to stockpile, but is either composted, tilled 

into the ground or hauled away from the premises; 

(e) Barks, whines, howls or other disturbing noises are made in an excessive, 

continuous, or untimely fashion; 

(f) Is determined by the King County health department to be a public nuisance by 

virtue of being offensive or dangerous to the public health, welfare or safety.  

(3) Except as otherwise provided in this chapter, any violation of any provision of this chapter 

constitutes a civil code violation subject to and enforced pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 

1.30 CMC.  

18.80.018 Amortization requirements.  

Except for as provided in CMC 18.80.015(6), the following amortization requirements shall apply 

to prior legal nonconforming animal uses under this chapter: 

(1) Any prior legal nonconforming animal uses must be discontinued or brought into 

conformance with CMC 18.80.015(1), (3), (7), (8), (9), and (10) within three (3) months of the 

effective date of the ordinance codified in this chapter.  

(2) Any prior legal nonconforming animal uses must be discontinued or brought into 

conformance with CMC 18.80.015(2), (4), and (6) within one (1) year of the effective date of the 

ordinance codified in this chapter.  

(a) An extension or exemption from the amortization requirements in this subsection (2), 

only, may be applied for by the property owner on which the prior legal nonconforming 

animal use exists. An application for an amortization exemption or extension may be 

approved, or approved with modification, by the director if it satisfies all of the following 

criteria: 

(i) The use is compatible with the subject property; 

41 of 70



11 
 

(ii) The use substantially complies with the requirements of the code for the land 

use district in which it is located. Minor deviations from these code provisions 

may be approved by the director if he or she concludes that the use is compatible 

with the character of the primary structures on the subject property and with the 

structures and uses on surrounding properties; 

(iii) The enforcement of this code would result in a substantial hardship to the 

applicant due to the size, shape, topography, location, or surroundings of the 

subject property and such hardship was not created by any action of the 

applicant; 

(iv) The use is consistent with the city’s comprehensive plan; and 

(v) The use is consistent with and does not endanger the public health, safety 

and welfare. 

The decision to issue an amortization extension or exemption under this subsection shall 

be made in the sole discretion of the director, and such decision shall be final.  

(3) Any prior legal nonconforming animal uses must comply with all other provisions of this 

chapter not enumerated above immediately upon the effective date of the ordinance codified in 

this chapter. 

(4) Any and all new animal uses shall be subject to the provisions of this chapter. 

18.80.020 Animal regulations – Small animals.  

The raising, keeping, breeding or fee boarding of small animals are subject to Chapter 11.04 

KCC, Animal Control Regulations (adopted by Chapter 6.05 CMC), and the following 

requirements: 

(1) Small animals which are kept indoors as household pets in aquariums, terrariums, cages or 

similar containers shall not be limited in number, except as may be provided in KCC Title 11 

(adopted by Chapter 6.05 CMC). Other small animals excluding cats kept indoors as household 

pets shall be limited to five, of which not more than three may be unaltered cats or dogs. Cats 

kept indoors shall not be limited in numbers. 

42 of 70



12 
 

(2) Other small animals kept outside, including adult cats and dogs, shall be limited to three per 

household on lots of less than 20,000 square feet, five per household on lots of 20,000 to 

35,000 square feet, with an additional two per acre of site area over 35,000 square feet up to a 

maximum of 20, unless more are allowed as an accessory use pursuant to subsection (5) of this 

section; provided, that all unaltered animals kept outdoors must be kept on a leash or in a 

confined area, except as authorized for a hobby kennel or cattery or commercial kennel or 

cattery pursuant to Chapter 11.04 KCC (adopted by Chapter 6.05 CMC). 

(3) Excluding kennels and catteries, the total number of unaltered adult cats and/or dogs per 

household shall not exceed three. 

(4) Animals considered to be household pets shall be treated as other small animals pursuant to 

subsection (5) of this section when they are kept for commercial breeding, boarding or training. 

(5) Small animals and household pets kept as an accessory use outside the dwelling shall be 

raised, kept or bred only as an accessory use on the premises of the owner, or in a kennel or 

cattery approved through the conditional use permit process, subject to the following limitations: 

(a) Birds shall be kept in an aviary or loft that meets the following standards: 

(i) The aviary or loft shall provide one-half square foot for each parakeet, canary or 
similarly sized birds, one square foot for each pigeon, small parrot or similarly sized 
bird, and two square feet for each large parrot, macaw or similarly sized bird. 

(ii) Aviaries or lofts shall not exceed 2,000 square feet, provided this limit shall not 
apply in rural, forestry, or agricultural zones. 

(iii) The aviary is set back at least 10 feet from any property line, and 20 feet from any 
dwelling unit. 

(b) Small animals other than birds shall be kept according to the following standards: 

(i) No property owner shall keep or house more than three small animals. 

(ii) All animals shall be confined within a building, pen, aviary or similar structure. 

(iii) Any covered structure used to house or contain such animals shall maintain a 
distance of not less than 10 feet to any property line, except structures used to house 
mink and fox shall be a distance of not less than 150 feet from any property line. 

43 of 70



13 
 

(iv) Mink and fox are not permitted within City limits. 

(v) Beekeeping is limited as follows: 

(A) Beehives are limited to 50 on sites less than five acres; 

(B) The number of beehives shall not be limited on sites of five acres or greater; 

(C) Colonies shall be maintained in movable-frame hives at all times; 

(D) Adequate space shall be provided in each hive to prevent overcrowding and 
swarming; 

(E) Colonies shall be requeened following any swarming or aggressive behavior; 

(F) All colonies shall be registered with the City extension agent prior to April 1st 
of each year, on a State registration form acceptable to the City; and 

(G) Abandoned colonies, diseased bees, or bees living in trees, buildings, or any 
other space except in movable-frame hives shall constitute a public nuisance, 
and shall be abated as set forth in this code; 

(c) Kennels and catteries are subject to the following requirements: 

(i) For kennels located on residential zoned sites: 

(A) The minimum site area shall be five acres; and 

(B) Structures housing animals and outdoor animal runs shall be a minimum 
distance of 100 feet from property lines abutting residential zones; 

(ii) For kennels located on nonresidential zoned sites, run areas shall be completely 
surrounded by an eight-foot solid wall or fence, and be subject to the requirements in 
KCC 11.04.060 (adopted by Chapter 6.05 CMC); and 

(iii) Catteries shall be on sites of 35,000 square feet or more, and buildings used to 
house cats shall be a minimum distance of 50 feet from property lines abutting 
residential zones. (Ord. 42-02 § 2 (21A.30.020)) 

18.80.030 Animal regulations – Livestock – Purpose.  

The primary purpose of CMC 18.80.040 through 18.80.090 is to support the raising and keeping 

of livestock in the City in a manner that minimizes the adverse impacts of livestock on the 

environment particularly with regard to their impacts on water quality and salmonid fisheries 

44 of 70



14 
 

habitat in the City of Covington watersheds. Maintaining and enhancing the viability of fisheries, 

livestock-raising and farming are essential to the long-term economic vitality, recreation 

opportunities and quality of life in rural and resource lands of the City of Covington. The 

following sections establish regulations which set livestock densities and require implementation 

of best management practices for minimizing nonpoint pollution from livestock in a manner that 

recognizes the need for integrated resource management within the City of Covington 

watersheds. They are intended to be consistent with livestock welfare; however, these concerns 

are more appropriately addressed through Chapter 11.04 KCC (adopted by Chapter 6.05 CMC). 

(Ord. 42-02 § 2 (21A.30.030)) 

18.80.040 Animal regulations – Livestock – Densities. 

The raising, keeping, breeding or fee boarding of livestock are subject to Chapter 11.04 KCC 

(adopted by Chapter 6.05 CMC), Animal Control Regulations, and the following requirements: 

(1) The minimum lot size on which large livestock may be kept shall be 20,000 square feet; 

provided, that the amount of site area available for use by the livestock may be less than 20,000 

square feet; and provided further, that the portion of the total lot area used for confinement or 

grazing meets the requirements of this section. 

(2) The maximum number of livestock shall be as follows: 

(a) Commercial dairy farms in full compliance with a Washington State Department of 

Ecology NPDES general or special use permit, as consistent with the permit requirements. 

Otherwise, subsection (2)(c) of this section applies. Commercial dairies shall have five 

years from the adoption of this section to either comply with the State permit requirements 

or come into compliance with King County Ordinance 11168. 

(b) Six resident animal units per gross acre in stables, barns and other livestock 

operations with covered confinement areas; provided, that no more than three animal units 

per gross acre are allowed to use uncovered grazing or confinement areas on a full-time 

basis, and the standards in CMC 18.80.060 are met or a farm management plan is 

implemented and maintained pursuant to King County Ordinance 11168; provided further, 

that higher densities may be allowed subject to the conditional use permit process to 

confirm compliance with the management standards. This conditional use permit process 

is not required for existing operations which operate with higher densities, provided the 

45 of 70



15 
 

standards in King County Ordinance 11168 are met or a farm management plan is 

implemented for such operations. 

(c) For all large livestock not covered by subsections (2)(a) or (b) of this section, three 

animal units per gross acre of vegetated site area; provided, that the standards in CMC 

18.80.060 are met or a farm management plan is implemented and maintained. 

(i) If a farm management plan is implemented and maintained as required or, in the 
alternative, all of the management standards of CMC 18.80.060 are met, three 
horses, cows or similarly sized animals per gross acre of total site area; provided 
further, that two ponies shall be counted as being equivalent to one horse and that 
miniature horses shall be treated as small livestock subject to subsection (2)(d) of this 
section. 

(ii) If subsection (2)(c)(i) of this section is not met, one animal unit per two acres of 
vegetated area; provided, that the standards for storage and handling of manure, as 
set out in CMC 18.80.050, are met; 

(d) For purposes of these regulations, an animal unit shall consist of one adult horse or 

bovine, two ponies, five small livestock, or equivalent thereof (excluding sucklings); 

provided, that miniature horses and feeder calves (up to one year of age) shall be 

considered small livestock. (Ord. 42-02 § 2 (21A.30.040)) 

18.80.050 Animal regulations – Livestock – Farm management plans. 

(1) To achieve the maximum density allowances using a farm management (conservation) plan, 

the plan must be developed according to the following criteria: 

(a) The plan must be developed by the King County Conservation District.  

(b) The plan shall require site-specific management measures for minimizing nonpoint 

pollution from agricultural activities including but not limited to: 

(i) Livestock watering, wetland and stream corridor management; 

(ii) Grazing and pasture management; 

(iii) Confinement area management; 

(iv) Manure management. 

46 of 70



16 
 

(c) The plan shall be implemented within a timeframe established in the plan and 

maintained such that nonpoint pollution attributable to livestock-keeping is minimized. 

(d) A monitoring plan shall be developed as part of the farm management plan, and 

implemented to demonstrate no significant impact to water quality and salmonid fisheries 

habitat. Monitoring data shall be available to the City. 

(2) Farm management plans (FMPs) shall, at a minimum: 

(a) Generally seek to achieve a 25-foot buffer of diverse, mature vegetation between 

grazing areas and the ordinary high water mark of all Class 1 and 2 streams and any 

naturally occurring pond and the wetland edge of any Class 1 or 2 wetland on the site, 

using buffer averaging where necessary to accommodate existing structures. No buffer for 

Class 1 or 2 streams shall be less than 10 feet. The plan must include best management 

practices which avoid having manure accumulate in or within 10 feet of Class 3 streams; 

provided, that forested lands being cleared for grazing areas shall comply with the 

sensitive areas ordinance setbacks for Class l, 2 and 3 streams and Class 1 and 2 

wetlands. 

(b) Assure that drainage ditches on the site do not channel animal waste to such streams 

and wetlands.  

(c) Achieve an additional 20-foot buffer downslope of any confinement areas within 200 

feet of Class 1 and 2 streams. This requirement may be waived for existing confinement 

areas on lots of two and one-half acres or less in size if: 

(i) A minimum buffer of 25 feet of diverse, mature vegetation is achieved; 

(ii) Manure within the confinement area is removed daily during the winter season 
(October 15th to April 15th) and stored per CMC 18.80.060(4); 

(iii) Additional BMPs, as recommended by the Community Development Director, are 
implemented and maintained. 

(d) Include a schedule for implementation. 

(3) A copy of the final plans shall be provided to the City within 60 days of completion.  

47 of 70



17 
 

(4) The completed plan may be appealed to the Hearing Examiner pursuant to the provisions of 

Chapter 14.35 CMC. The appeal must be filed within 30 days of being received by the Clerk. 

Only the property owner may file appeals. Any plan not appealed shall constitute prima facie 

evidence of compliance with the regulatory provisions of CMC 13.35.030. (Amended at request 

of department 2/08; Ord. 42-02 § 2 (21A.30.045)) 

18.80.060 Animal regulations – Livestock – Management standards. 

Property owners with farms containing large livestock at densities greater than one animal unit 

per two acres, and/or small livestock at densities greater than five animals per acre are not 

required to follow an FMP if said owners adhere to the following management standards. This 

section shall apply as long as farm practices do not result in violation of any Federal, State or 

local water quality standards. 

(1) Livestock Watering, Wetland and Stream Corridor Management. To minimize livestock 

access to streams, property owners shall utilize the following livestock watering options: 

(a) The preferred option shall be a domestic water supply, stock watering pond, roof runoff 

collection system, or approved pumped supply from the stream so that livestock are not 

required to enter streams for their water supply. 

(b) Livestock access to Class 1 and 2 streams and their buffers shall be limited to stream 

crossing and watering points which have been addressed by a crossing or watering point 

plan designed to SCS/KCD specifications which shall prevent free access along the length 

of the streams. 

(i) Fencing shall be used as necessary to prevent livestock access to Class 1 and 2 
streams. 

(ii) Bridges may be used in lieu of stream crossings; provided, that piers and 
abutments shall not be placed within the ordinary high water mark or top-of-bank, 
whichever is greater. Bridges shall be designed to allow free flow of flood waters and 
shall not diminish the flood carrying capacity of the stream; these bridges may be 
placed without a City building permit; provided, that such permit waiver shall not 
constitute any assumption of liability by the City with regard to such bridge or its 
placement. The waiver of City building permit requirements does not constitute a 
waiver from other required agency permits. 

(2) Grazing and Pasture Management. 

48 of 70



18 
 

(a) Existing grazing areas not addressed by Chapter 18.65 CMC shall maintain a 

vegetative buffer of 50 feet from any naturally occurring pond, wetland edge of a Class 1 

or 2 wetland (except those wetlands meeting the definition of grazed wet meadows), or the 

ordinary high water mark of a Class 1 or 2 stream.  

(b) Forested lands being cleared for grazing areas shall comply with the sensitive areas 

ordinance setbacks for Class 1, 2 and 3 streams, and Class 1 and 2 wetlands. 

(c) The grazing area buffer may be reduced to 25 feet where a 25-foot buffer of diverse, 

mature vegetation already exists. This buffer reduction may not be used when forested 

lands are being cleared for grazing areas. 

(d) Fencing shall be used to establish and maintain the buffer. 

(e) Fencing installed pursuant to the 1990 SAO prior to the effective date of the ordinance 

codified in this section at setbacks other than those specified in subsections (2)(a) and (b) 

of this section shall be deemed to constitute compliance with those requirements. 

(f) Grazing areas within 200 feet of a Class 1 or 2 stream or wetland shall not be plowed 

during the rainy season (October 1st through April 15th). 

(g) Grazing areas may extend to the property line; provided, that Class 1 or 2 streams and 

wetlands adjacent to the property line are buffered in accordance with subsection (2)(a), 

(b) or (c) of this section. 

(3) Confinement Area Management. 

(a) In addition to the buffers in subsection (2)(a) and (b) section, confinement areas 

located within 200 feet of any Class 1 or 2 streams, wetlands or drainage ways shall: 

(i) Have a 20-foot-wide vegetative filter strip downhill from the confinement area, 
consisting of heavy grasses or other ground cover with high stem density and which 
may also include tree cover; 

(ii) Not be located in any Class 1 or 2 stream or wetland buffer area required by the 
sensitive areas ordinance in effect at the time the confinement area is built, or within 
50 feet of any naturally occurring pond, wetland edge of any Class 1 or 2 wetland or 
the ordinary high water mark of any Class 1 or 2 stream. Fencing shall be used to 
establish and maintain the buffer. Existing confinement areas which do not meet 

49 of 70



19 
 

these requirements shall be modified as necessary to provide the buffers specified 
herein within five years of the effective date of the ordinance codified in this section; 
provided further, that the footprint of existing buildings need not be so modified; 

(iii) Have roof drains of any buildings in the confinement area diverted away from the 
confinement area. 

(b) Confinement areas may extend to the property line; provided, that streams and 

wetlands adjacent to the property line are buffered in accordance with subsection (3)(a) of 

this section. 

(4) Manure Management. 

(a) Manure storage areas shall be managed as follows: 

(i) Surface flows and roof runoff shall be diverted away from manure storage areas. 

(ii) During the winter months (October 15th to April 15th), all manure stockpiled within 
200 feet uphill of any Class 1 or 2 stream or wetland shall be covered in a manner 
that excludes precipitation and allows free flow of air to minimize fire danger; or, in 
the alternative, shall be placed in an uncovered concrete bunker or manure lagoon or 
held for pickup in a dumpster, vehicle or other facility designed to prevent leachate 
from reaching any streams or any Class 1 or 2 wetlands. Concrete bunkers shall be 
monitored quarterly for the first two years after installation, then annually unless 
problems were identified in the first two years, in which case quarterly monitoring 
shall continue and appropriate adjustments shall be made.  

(iii) Manure shall be stored in a location that avoids having runoff from the manure 
enter streams or wetlands. Manure piles shall not be closer than 50 feet uphill from 
any wetland edge, the ordinary high water mark of any stream, or any ditch to which 
the topography would generally direct runoff from the manure, nor within any stream 
buffer. 

(b) Manure shall be spread on fields only during the growing season, and not on saturated 

or frozen fields. 

(5) Noxious Weeds. None of these standards shall preclude the removal of noxious weeds; 

provided, that such removal is achieved without the use of chemicals or mechanical methods 

which would be damaging to stream banks or other vegetation in the buffer. 

50 of 70



20 
 

(6) For purposes of this section, “buffer maintenance” means allowing vegetation in the buffer 

which provides shade for the stream or acts as a filter for storm water entering the stream, other 

than noxious weeds, to grow to its mature height; provided, that grasses in the buffer may be 

mowed but not grazed. Grading in the buffer is allowed only for establishment of watering and 

crossing points, or for other activities permitted pursuant to the sensitive areas ordinance, with 

the appropriate permits. 

(7) Properties which have existing fencing already installed at distances other than those 

specified in these standards, and for which farm management plans have been developed 

based on the existing fencing locations, shall be deemed to be in compliance with the fencing 

requirements of these standards. 

(8) Buffer areas shall not be subject to public access, use or dedication by reason of the 

establishment of such buffers. (Ord. 42-02 § 2 (21A.30.060)) 

18.80.070 Animal regulations – Livestock – Building requirements. 

(1) In residential zones, fee boarding of livestock other than in a legally established stable shall 

only be as an accessory use to a resident on the subject property.  

(2) A barn or stable may contain a caretaker’s accessory living quarters under the following 

conditions: 

(a) Only one accessory living quarters per primary detached dwelling unit, except in zones 

where accessory living quarters are specifically prohibited; 

(b) The accessory living quarters shall not exceed 500 square feet; and 

(c) The structure must be constructed in conformance with the International Building Code; 

and  

(3) A barn or stable may contain a caretaker’s accessory dwelling unit as allowed pursuant to 

these provisions of this title relating to accessory dwelling units. (Ord. 06-05 § 1; Ord. 23-04 

§ 18; Ord. 42-02 § 2 (21A.30.062)) 

18.80.080 Animal regulations – Livestock – Education and enforcement. 

51 of 70



21 
 

(1) Education. Enforcement of these livestock standards shall initially emphasize achieving 

compliance with the standards as the primary objective, rather than the collection of fines or 

penalties. Fines or penalties are appropriate when a property owner or livestock operator has 

been advised of necessary corrective actions and has not made those corrections. Where 

violations of the standards do occur, and such violations are directly linked to identified hazards 

or the discharge of prohibited contaminants, as enumerated in the City civil penalty ordinance, 

Chapter 1.30 CMC, code enforcement must emphasize immediate correction of the practices 

resulting in the hazard or prohibited discharge. 

(2) Both the property owner and any renter or lessee of the property, hereinafter referred to 

“livestock operator,” shall be held responsible for compliance with these standards. 

(3) Prima Facie Evidence. Establishment and adherence to a farm management plan as allowed 

by CMC 18.80.050 or the management standards provided by CMC 18.80.060 shall be prima 

facie proof of compliance with the regulatory provisions of CMC 13.35.030. 

(4) Violations of Specific Standards. The Department shall be responsible for enforcement of the 

standards set out in this chapter. The Surface Water Management Division shall be responsible 

for enforcement of water quality violations pursuant to Chapter 13.35 CMC for prohibited 

discharges and hazards. If a specific standard identified in this chapter is not being adhered to, 

the operator and owner shall be given notice of noncompliance. The notice shall specify what 

actions must be taken to bring the property into compliance. The operator and owner shall be 

given 45 days in which to adhere to the management standards of CMC 18.80.060, or establish 

a farm management plan pursuant to CMC 18.80.050 as the owner and/or livestock operator 

may elect for the purpose of compliance. Should the owner and/or livestock operator fail to bring 

the property into compliance with the standards, the City, after notice, may commence 

abatement proceedings and impose civil fines 30 days thereafter, to the extent necessary for 

compliance. Thereafter, upon exhaustion of any appeals, failure of the operator and owner to 

comply with any continuing order to abate, the operator and owner shall be subject to civil and 

criminal penalties, and other procedures, as set forth in this title and Chapter 1.30 CMC. (Ord. 

10-07 § 13; Ord. 42-02 § 2 (21A.30.066)) 

18.80.090 Existing livestock operations. 

All existing livestock operations shall either implement a farm management plan or meet the 

management standards in CMC 18.80.060, within five years of the adoption date of this title: 

52 of 70



22 
 

existing buildings are exempt from this provision. State standards for fecal coliform, turbidity, 

and nutrients must be met within five years from the date of adoption of the ordinance codified 

in this chapter. The Metropolitan Services Department/Water Quality Division shall monitor 

stream systems for progress in meeting this goal, and report annually to the Council. (Ord. 42-

02 § 2 (21A.30.070)) 

[REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK] 

 

  

53 of 70



23 
 

CMC 18.25.050 
General services land uses. 

18.25.050 General services land uses. 

A. Table. 

Key                       

P – Permitted Use 
C – Conditional Use 

                      

SIC # SPECIFIC LAND USE M US 
R4-
8 

R-
12 

R-18 MR CC NC RCMU I 

* PERSONAL SERVICES: 

72 General personal service           P P P P P 

7216 Dry cleaning plants                   P 

7218 Industrial launderers                   P 

7261 Funeral home/crematory     C4 C4 C4 C4         

* Cemetery, columbarium 
or mausoleum (5) 

    C3 C3 C3 C3 C3 C3     

* Day care I     P6 P6 P P P P P P7 

* Day care II     P8 P8 P P P P P P7 

074 Veterinary clinic or 
*Animal Shelter 

  
(12) 

              P P 

753 Automotive repair (1) (12)                   P 

754 Automotive service (2)                   P 

76 Miscellaneous repair                   P 

866 Churches, synagogue, 
temple 

  C C C C C P P C   

83 Social services           P P   P   

60/81/872 Legal/financial         P9, 
14 

P13 P P14 P   

8748 Business consulting 
services 

        P9 P13 P   P   

* Kennel or Cattery    P  C              P12 

54 of 70



24 
 

* Artist studios         P9 C P   P P 

* Interim recycling facility   P10               P 

  HEALTH SERVICES: 

* Medical/dental 
office/outpatient clinic 

        P9 P13, 
15 

P P P P 

805 Nursing and personal 
care facilities 

        P9           

807 Medical/dental lab         P9         P 

808 – 809 Miscellaneous health         P9           

  EDUCATIONAL SERVICES: 

  Schools: Elementary, 
middle/junior high, 

secondary or high school 

    P P P P         

  Vocational school     C C C C       P 

  Specialized instruction 
school 

    C C C C P     P 

  School district support 
facility 

    P11 P11 P11 P11 C     P 

 

… 

  

55 of 70



25 
 

CMC 18.31.080 
Permitted land uses 

 

18.31.080 Permitted land uses. 

(1) The use of a property is defined by the activity for which the building or lot is intended, 

designed, arranged, occupied or maintained. The use is considered permanently established 

when that use will or has been in continuous operation for a period exceeding 60 days. A use 

which will operate for less than 60 days is considered a temporary use, and subject to the 

requirements of Chapter 18.85 CMC. 

… 

 (3) Permitted Use Table. 

Use Categories 

Town 
Center 
(TC)23 

Mixed 
Commercial 

(MC) 

General 
Commercial 

(GC) 

Mixed 
Housing 

Office 
(MHO)1 

Residential 

Dwelling Unit, Accessory NP NP NP P2 

Dwelling Unit, Multifamily P26 P P P 

Dwelling Unit, Single-Family Attached, Detached 
or Cottage Housing21 

NP NP NP P2 

Senior Citizen Assisted Housing P P P C 

Commercial 

Adult Entertainment  NP P3 P3 NP 

Business Services19 P5 P P P4,5 

Drive Through Use NP P P NP 

Farmers’ Markets and Public Markets6 P P P NP 

Gambling and Card Rooms NP NP NP NP 

Home Occupation and Live/Work P P P P 

Veterinary Clinics (SIC 074), Animal Shelters, 
Kennels, and Catteries20 

NP P NP NP 

56 of 70



26 
 

Outdoor Commercial NP NP P NP 

Personal and Beauty Services20,21 P P P P 

Private Electric Vehicle Parking Facility (Primary 
Use) 

    P5,24   

Private Parking Facility (Primary Use) NP NP NP NP 

Professional Office P P P P 

Retail Trade and Services – 100,000 sq. ft. or less 
for all structures  

P5 P P10 P4,5 

Retail Trade and Services – greater than 100,000 
sq. ft. for all structures  

C5,9,18 P P10 NP 

Shooting Ranges25 NP NP P NP 

Storage/Self Storage NP P5 P NP 

Temporary Lodging/Hotel P P P C22 

Cultural/Recreation 

Cinema, Performing Arts and Museums  P P P NP 

Meeting Hall/Other Group Assembly P P P C 

Recreation, Indoor or Outdoor C P P P 

Religious C7 P P C 

Health Services 

Emergency Care Facility  C9,18 P NP NP 

Hospital  NP P NP NP 

Medical Office/Outpatient Clinic P8 P NP P 

Nursing/Personal Care Facility NP P NP C 

Industrial/Manufacturing  

Asphalt Plants NP NP NP NP 

Light Industrial/Manufacturing NP NP P10 NP 

Government/Institutional11 

Essential Public Facilities NP NP C NP 

Government Services P  P  P  P12 

Major Utility Facility C14 C P C 

Minor Utility Facility P15 P P P 

57 of 70



27 
 

Schools: Compulsory, Vocational and Higher 
Education  

C13 P NP C 

Wireless Communication Facilities16 

Antenna, Collocation on an Existing Structure17 P P P P 

Wireless Communication Facility Tower NP NP NP NP 

20. a. No burning of refuse or dead animals is allowed; 

b. The portion of the building or structure in which animals are kept or treated shall be soundproofed. All 

run areas, excluding confinement areas for livestock, shall be surrounded by an eight-foot-high solid wall 

and surfaced with concrete or other impervious material;  

c. Subject to animal keeping provisions of Chapter 18.80 CMC;  

d. Prior to issuance of a development permit, documentation shall be provided by a qualified acoustical 

consultant, for approval by the Community Development Director, verifying that the expected noise to be 

emanating from the site complies with the standards set forth in WAC 173-60-040(1) for a Class B 

source property and a Class A receiving property;  

e. Outside runs and other outside facilities for animals are not permitted;  

e f.  Not permitted in any subdivision containing dwelling units; and 

f g. May only treat domestic

 

 small animals on premises. 

… 

 

58 of 70

http://www.codepublishing.com/wa/covington/html/Coving18/Coving1880.html#18.80�


Attachment 2 
Animal Control Regulation Comparison with Other Communities  

1 
 

 Small 
Domestic/Household 

Animals 
Poultry Livestock Bees Potbelly Pigs 

1. Proposed 
Covington 

Regulations 

No limit for animals 
kept in aquariums, 
cages, etc. Five for 

other indoor/outdoor 
animals, only 3 

unaltered cats and 
dogs. 

Five for a property under 
16,000 sq. ft. One 

additional fowl for each 
additional 4,000 square 

feet. Maximum of fifteen 
on any site. 

One at 20,000 sq. ft. and 
one additional animal 

unit for each additional 
15,000 sq. ft. 

Minimum lot size is 
10,000 sq. ft. Two hives 
for under 20,000 sq. ft., 

one additional hive 
each additional 10,000 
sq. ft. of lot size. 25 ft. 
setback from property 

lines.  

If under 22” in height at 
shoulder and 150 lbs, 

kept in accordance with 
domestic animal 
regulations (1). 

Maximum of two per 
household. If over 22” 
and/or 150 lbs, kept as 

small livestock. 

2. Enumclaw 

Domestic animals are 
permitted in all zoning 

districts with no 
required minimum lot 

size, provided not 
more than four of 

which can be kept in a 
home. 

Poultry are permitted in 
all zoning districts with 

no required minimum lot 
size. No peafowl are 

permitted. A maximum 
of six fowl, not including 
roosters, are allowed on 

lots smaller than one 
acre. A maximum of one 
rooster is allowed per lot 

over one acre in size. 

The minimum lot size for 
keeping livestock is 

21,780 square feet (1/2 
acre) for the first animal, 
and 14,500 square feet 

for each additional 
animal unit. Alternate lot 

sizes may be allowed 
subject to approval of the 

administrator in any 
district. 

No specific regulations. 
No specific regulations. 

Likely regulated as 
livestock. 

3. Maple 
Valley 

Small animals kept 
indoors as household 

pets shall not be 
limited in number. 

Small animals kept 
outdoors shall be limited 

to five, unless the 
resident obtains a hobby 
kennel license from King 
County Animal Control. 

Large animals are limited 
to one per each one-half 
acre of property. 

 

Considered small 
animals by definition. 

No specific regulations? 

No specific regulations. 
Likely regulated as 

livestock. 
 

59 of 70



Attachment 2 
Animal Control Regulation Comparison with Other Communities  

2 
 

 Small 
Domestic/Household 

Animals 
Poultry Livestock Bees Potbelly Pigs 

4. Kent 

Up to three small 
domestic animals per 
dwelling unit. More 

than three allowed on 
lots greater than 
20,000 sq. ft (no 

max?). 

Up to three 
domesticated fowl on a 
lot that is at least five 

thousand (5,000) square 
feet. One additional for 

every additional 1,000 in 
land area. 

All livestock only on lots 
of at least twenty 

thousand (20,000) square 
feet. One additional for 
every 10,000 of lot area. 

Swine is prohibited.  

No more than four 
hives on lots less than 
10,000 sq ft. (no max).  

One potbelly pig per 
dwelling as a small 
domestic animal. 

5. Auburn 
Four per dwelling or 
commercial building 
regardless of lot size.  

Four on lots that are at 
least 6,000 gross sq. ft. in 

size. On lots that are 
larger than 6,000 gross 
sq. ft., one additional 

small lot domestic animal 
may be kept per 

additional 2,000 gross sq. 
ft. 

Two on lots that are at 
least one gross acre in 
size. On lots that are 
larger than one gross 

acre, one additional large 
lot domestic animal may 

be kept per additional 
21,780 sq. ft. 

No specific regulations. 

(Potbelly pigs/mini 
goats) Two on lots at 

least 12,500 gross sq. ft. 
On lots that are greater 

than 12,500 gross sq. ft., 
one additional medium 

lot domestic animal may 
be kept per additional 

7,500 sq. ft. 

6. Federal 
Way 

No specific limits for 
household pets other 
than four rabbits or 

less per dwelling unit. 

Combination of four 
chickens/ducks on lots up 
to 34,999 square feet. No 

more than 20 small 
domestic animals may be 
kept on a lot containing 

35,000 square feet. With 
the exception of chickens 
and ducks, one additional 
small domestic animal is 

permitted for each 
additional 500 square 

feet of lot area. Roosters 
not allowed most sites. 

The subject property 
must be at least 70,000 
square feet in area. No 

more than two large 
domestic animals may be 
kept on a lot containing 

70,000 square feet of 
area. One additional 

large domestic animal is 
permitted for each 

additional 35,000 square 
feet of lot area. 

The subject property 
must be at least 15,000 
square feet in area. Two 

hives are permitted if 
the subject property is 
less than 20,000 sq. ft. 

Five hives are permitted 
between 20,000 and 
60,000 sq. ft. in area. 
Maximum of 15 hives 
are permitted if the 

property is more than 
60,000 sq. ft. 

No specific regulations. 
Likely regulated as large 

domestic animals. 

60 of 70



Attachment 2 
Animal Control Regulation Comparison with Other Communities  

3 
 

 Small 
Domestic/Household 

Animals 
Poultry Livestock Bees Potbelly Pigs 

7. Renton 

Three per dwelling or 
commercial building; 
no minimum lot size. 

The keeping of four or 
more dogs and/or cats 

shall always require 
an Additional Animals 

Permit. 

Three on lots that are at 
least 4,500 gross sq. ft. in 

size. On lots that are 
larger than 4,500 gross 
sq. ft., one additional 

small lot domestic animal 
may be kept per 

additional 1,000 gross sq. 
ft. (poultry and rabbits) 

Large Lot animals-two on 
lots that are at least one 
gross acre in size. On lots 
that are larger than one 

gross acre, one additional 
large lot domestic animal 

may be kept per 
additional 43,560 sq. ft. 

Minimum lot 7,500. A 
maximum of three hives 
are generally permitted 
and one additional hive 
may be kept for every 

additional ten thousand 
(10,000) gross square 

feet of lot size. 

No specific regulations. 
Likely regulated as large 

lot animals.   

8. Seattle 

Up to four small 
animals are permitted 

on lots of at least 
20,000 square feet. 

One additional small 
animal is permitted 

for each 5,000 square 
feet of lot area in 
excess of 20,000 

square feet. (Includes 
pygmy goats.) 

Up to 8 domestic fowl 
may be kept on any lot in 

addition to the small 
animals permitted. 

Roosters not permitted. 
One additional fowl is 
permitted for every 

1,000 square feet of lot 
area over 10,000 square 
feet in the community 
garden or urban farm 

use. 

Farm animals permitted 
only on lots of at least 

20,000 square feet. The 
keeping of swine is 

prohibited, except for a 
miniature potbelly pig. 

One farm animal for 
every 10,000 square feet 
of lot area is permitted. 

No more than four 
hives are allowed on 

lots of less than 10,000 
square feet. 

In no case is more than 
one miniature potbelly 

pig allowed per business 
establishment or 

dwelling unit. 

9. King 
County         

Small animals as 
household pets in 

dwelling in aquariums, 
cages or similar 

containers and altered 
cats shall not be 

limited in number. 
Other small animals 

shall be five.  

The minimum site area 
shall be ½ acre if more 

than 3 are kept. For sites 
over 20,000, 1 additional 
fowl per sq ft of structure 
used to house. Maximum 

of 2000 sq. ft. 

Varies based on many 
factors. Three animal 
units per gross acre 

under certain conditions. 
Minimum lot size is 

20,000 sq. ft. for large 
livestock. 

Hives are limited to 50 
on sites less than five 

acres. Number of hives 
shall not be limited on 
sites over five acres. 

Regulated as small 
livestock per existing 

regulations. Three 
animal units per gross 

acre under certain 
conditions. 

61 of 70



Attachment 2 
Animal Control Regulation Comparison with Other Communities  

4 
 

 Small 
Domestic/Household 

Animals 
Poultry Livestock Bees Potbelly Pigs 

10. Black 
Diamond 

Each dwelling unit is 
limited to a total of 
five household pets, 
any three of which 
may be adult dogs, 

and any three of 
which may be adult 
cats. Does not apply 

to animals kept 
indoors in cages or 

tanks. 

No more than four small 
domestic animals 

(including fowl) shall be 
permitted on lots less 

than one-half acre in size; 
provided that the 
combined total of 

household pets and small 
domestic animals does 
not exceed six. For lots 
greater than one-half 

acre in size, five 
additional animals per 

one-half acre. 

Minimum acreage shall 
be one-half acre of 

enclosed pasture. No 
livestock or large farm 

animals shall be allowed 
on lots less than one-half 
acre in size. Livestock and 

large farm animals may 
be kept at a maximum 

ratio of four animals per 
enclosed acre of pasture. 

No specific regulations. No specific regulations.  

 

62 of 70



Attachment 3 
1/4 Acre Lot (10,890 sq. ft.) Animal Density Comparison with Neighboring Communities  

1 
 

 Small 
Domestic/Household 

Animals 
Poultry Livestock Bees Potbelly Pigs 

1. Proposed 
Covington 

Regulations 

No limit for animals 
kept indoors in 

aquariums, cages, etc. 
5 for other 

indoor/outdoor 
animals. 3 unaltered 

cats and dogs. 

5 allowed. Not allowed. 2 hives allowed.  Up to 2 allowed. 

2. Enumclaw  4 domestic animals 
can be kept in a home. 6 allowed. Not allowed. No specific regulations. No specific regulations.  

3. Maple 
Valley 

Small animals kept 
indoors as household 

pets shall not be 
limited in number. 
Small animals kept 
outdoors shall be 

limited to 5. 

5 allowed. Not allowed. 
Considered small 

animals by definition. 
No specific regulations. 

No specific regulations.  

63 of 70



Attachment 3 
1/4 Acre Lot (10,890 sq. ft.) Animal Density Comparison with Neighboring Communities  

2 
 

 Small 
Domestic/Household 

Animals 
Poultry Livestock Bees Potbelly Pigs 

4. Kent  3 allowed. 8 allowed. Not allowed.  No apparent limit.  1 allowed. 

5. Auburn 4 allowed.  6 allowed. Not allowed. No specific regulations. Not allowed. 

6. Federal 
Way 

No specific limits for 
household pets other 
than 4 rabbits or less 

per dwelling unit. 

4 allowed. Not allowed. Not allowed. No specific regulations.  

64 of 70



Attachment 3 
1/4 Acre Lot (10,890 sq. ft.) Animal Density Comparison with Neighboring Communities  

3 
 

 Small 
Domestic/Household 

Animals 
Poultry Livestock Bees Potbelly Pigs 

7. Renton 3 allowed outright. 9 allowed. Not allowed. 3 hives. No specific regulations.  

8. Seattle 4 allowed. 8 allowed. 2 allowed. No apparent limit. 1 allowed. 

9. King 
County         

Small animals as 
household pets in 

dwelling in aquariums, 
cages or similar 

containers and altered 
cats shall not be 

limited in number. 
Other small animals 

shall be 5.  

3 allowed. Not allowed. 50 allowed. No specific regulations. 

65 of 70



Attachment 3 
1/4 Acre Lot (10,890 sq. ft.) Animal Density Comparison with Neighboring Communities  

4 
 

 Small 
Domestic/Household 

Animals 
Poultry Livestock Bees Potbelly Pigs 

10. Black 
Diamond 

5 household pets, any 
3 of which may be 

adult dogs and cats. 
No limit for indoor 

animals in cages, etc. 

4 allowed. Not allowed. No specific regulations. No specific regulations.  

 

66 of 70



  
Covington City Council Meeting 

           Date:  July 14, 2015 

 
DISCUSSION OF  

FUTURE AGENDA TOPICS: 
 
 

6:00 p.m., Tuesday, July 28, 2015 Special Study Session 
 

7:00 p.m., Tuesday, July 28, 2015 Regular Meeting 
 

(Draft Agendas Attached) 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

67 of 70



 
 
 
 

CITY OF COVINGTON 
SPECIAL MEETING AGENDA 

CITY COUNCIL STUDY SESSION 
Council Chambers – 16720 SE 271st Street, Suite 100, Covington 

www.covingtonwa.gov 
 

Tuesday, July 28, 2015 – 6:00 p.m. 
                                                                         
GENERAL INFORMATION: 
The study session is an informal meeting involving discussion between and among the City Council, 
Commissioners, and city staff regarding policy issues.  Study sessions may involve presentations, 
feedback, brainstorming, etc., regarding further work to be done by the staff on key policy matters. 
 
CALL CITY COUNCIL STUDY SESSION TO ORDER 
 
ROLL CALL 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
ITEM(S) FOR DISCUSSION 
1. Status of Council Summit Action Items (Bolli) 
2. Funding Priorities (Bolli/Hendrickson) 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT Speakers will state their name, address, and organization. Comments are directed to the City Council, 
not the audience or staff. Comments are not intended for conversation or debate and are limited to no more than four minutes 
per speaker.  Speakers may request additional time on a future agenda as time allows.* 
 
ADJOURN 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Americans with Disabilities Act – reasonable accommodations provided upon request a minimum of 24 hours in advance 
(253-480-2400). 
 
 
 

*Note* A Regular Council meeting will follow at approximately 7:00 p.m. 

Draft 
As of 07/08/2015 

 

68 of 70

http://www.covingtonwa.gov/�


 
 
 

CITY OF COVINGTON 
CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 

www.covingtonwa.gov 
Tuesday, July 28, 2015                                                                                                          City Council Chambers 
7:00 p.m.                                                                                            16720 SE 271st Street, Suite 100, Covington 

 
Note:  A Study Session is scheduled from 6:00 to 7:00 p.m. 

 
CALL CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING TO ORDER 
 
ROLL CALL/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
PUBLIC COMMUNICATION – NONE 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT Speakers will state their name, address, and organization. Comments are directed to the City Council, 
not the audience or staff. Comments are not intended for conversation or debate and are limited to no more than four minutes 
per speaker.  Speakers may request additional time on a future agenda as time allows.* 
 
APPROVE CONSENT AGENDA 
C-1. Minutes:  July 14, 2015 Regular Meeting Minutes (Scott) 
C-2. Vouchers (Hendrickson) 
C-3. Accept Maple Hills Phase I Final Plat (Lyons) 
C-4. Authorize Apex Center Right-of-Way and Easement Dedications (Lyons) 
C-5. Amend Interlocal Agreement with King County Conservation Futures for SOCO Park/Jenkins Creek 

Trail (Thomas) 
C-6. Renew WRIA 9 Interlocal Agreement (Scott) 
 
REPORTS OF COMMISSIONS 

• Human Services Chair Fran McGregor:  June 11 and July 9 meetings 
• Parks & Recreation Chair Laura Morrissey:  June 17 and July 15 meetings 
• Arts Chair Lesli Cohan:  June 11 and July 9 meetings 
• Planning Chair Bill Judd:  June 4 and July 16 meetings; June 18 and July 2 meetings canceled 
• Economic Development Council Co-Chair Jeff Wagner:  May 28 and July 23 meetings; June 25 

meeting canceled 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
1. Consider Appointments to Covington Economic Development Council (Council) 
2. Consider Funding Priorities (Bolli/Hendrickson) 
3. 2015 Second Quarter Financial Report (Hendrickson) 

 
COUNCIL/STAFF COMMENTS - Future Agenda Topics 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT *See Guidelines on Public Comments above in First Public Comment Section 

Draft 
As of 07/08/2015 

 

69 of 70

http://www.covingtonwa.gov/�


 
EXECUTIVE SESSION – if needed 
 
ADJOURN 
 
Americans with Disabilities Act – reasonable accommodations provided upon request a minimum of 24 hours in advance 
(253-480-2400). 

70 of 70


	07-14-2015 Regular Meeting Agenda
	Tuesday, July 14, 2015                                                                                                          City Council Chambers
	APPROVAL OF AGENDA

	Consent C-1 Green Sheet 07-14-2015 Green Sheet Minutes Approval
	Consent Agenda Item C-1

	Consent C-1 Attachment 1 06.30.2015 Special Meeting Minutes
	Consent C-2 Green Sheet 07-14-2015 Voucher Green Sheet
	Consent Agenda Item C-2

	Consent C-2 Attachment 1
	Consent C-3 Green Sheet 07-14-15 164th Ped. Improvements Design Agreement Blue Sheet
	Consent Agenda Item C-3

	Consent C-3 Attachment 1 164th Ped. Improvements
	Item 1 Blue Sheet Amending Animal Control Regulations 071415
	Agenda Item 1

	Item 1 Attachment 1 Ordinance adopting new animal control regulations 07-14-15
	Item 1 Attachment 1 Exhibit A to Attachment 1 Final Proposed CMC Amend_Animal Control Regs_07142015 (3)
	PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO COVINGTON MUNICIPAL CODE (CMC) ANIMAL Control REGULATIONS CMC Chapters 6.05, 18.20, 18.25.050, 18.31.080, and 18.80
	Chapter 6.05 ANIMAL CONTROL  **CMC 6.05 to be repealed in its entirety and replaced with the following.**
	6.05.010 King County Code adopted—Exceptions—Conflicts. (1) The following chapters of the King County Code (KCC) are adopted by reference as if fully set forth herein, as the same have been amended by King County Ordinance No. 16861, and as they may b...
	(a) Chapter 11.04, Animal Control Regulations; (b) Chapter 11.08, Dog Leash Law; (c) Chapter 11.12, Rabies Control; (d) Chapter 11.20, Disposition of Fowl and Rabbits; (e) Chapter 11.24, Stock Restricted Area; (f)  Chapter 11.28, Exotic Animals; and  ...
	(2) The following exceptions shall be applied to the King County Code chapters adopted by reference in this chapter:
	(a) “Animal control authority” means the city or the animal control authority of King County, as agent for the city, acting alone or in concert with other municipalities for enforcement of the animal control laws of the city, King County, and the stat...
	(b) Unless the context indicates otherwise, “King County” means the city.
	(c) “County department of planning” means the Covington community development department.
	(d) “King County board of appeals” means the Covington City Council; provided, however, that at such time as the city may enter into a contract with King County for the enforcement of the animal control ordinance, the contract may provide for the use ...
	(e) KCC 11.04.010(B) shall provide that if there is a conflict between a provision of the KCC and a provision of the Covington Municipal Code, the provision of the Covington Municipal Code shall control.
	(f) All references in Chapter 11.04 of the KCC to Title 21A of the KCC, which provide for the number of animals that may be kept as part of certain land uses, shall be replaced with a reference to Title 18 of the CMC.
	(g) KCC 11.04.050(A) shall provide that the applicant for an original animal shelter, cattery, pet shop, grooming service, or kennel license shall present to the regional animal services section a written statement from the city community development ...
	(h) KCC 11.04.050(B) shall provide that shelters, catteries, pet shops, grooming services, and kennels shall comply with the licensing requirements of the Seattle-King County Department of Public Health. Subject to applicable restrictions in the city’...
	(3) No portion of this chapter shall be deemed to be exclusive or exhaustive in reference to animal control and shall not relieve any person from the duty to observe other and more restrictive local, state, or federal provisions.
	(4) The city shall maintain at all times available for review by the general public one copy of King County Code chapters adopted by reference in this chapter.
	6.05.020 Enforcement. (1) The city manager or designee and the regional animal services section of King County are authorized to enforce this chapter and the laws of the state of Washington that pertain to animal cruelty, shelter, welfare, and enforce...
	(2) Notwithstanding the existence or use of any other remedy, the city manager or designee may seek legal or equitable relief to enjoin acts or practices and abate any conditions that constitute a violation of this chapter or other regulations adopted...
	[REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]
	Chapter 18.20 TECHNICAL TERMS AND LAND USE DEFINITIONS
	18.20.005 Scope of chapter.  This chapter contains definitions of technical and procedural terms used throughout the code and definitions of land uses listed in tables in Chapter 18.25 CMC. The definitions in this chapter supplement the Standard Indu...
	Chapter 18.80 DEVELOPMENT STANDRARDS - DOMESTIC ANIMALS, LIVESTOCK, FOWL AND BEES, HOME OCCUPATION, HOME INDUSTRY
	18.80.015 General requirements.  The keeping of domestic animals, livestock, fowl, and bees is permitted outright as an accessory use to any primary use, in each case subject to all of the following requirements.
	18.80.017 Other requirements, nuisances, and enforcement.
	18.80.020 Animal regulations – Small animals.
	18.80.030 Animal regulations – Livestock – Purpose.
	18.80.040 Animal regulations – Livestock – Densities.
	18.80.050 Animal regulations – Livestock – Farm management plans.
	18.80.060 Animal regulations – Livestock – Management standards.
	18.80.070 Animal regulations – Livestock – Building requirements.
	18.80.080 Animal regulations – Livestock – Education and enforcement.
	18.80.090 Existing livestock operations.
	CMC 18.25.050 General services land uses.
	18.25.050 General services land uses.
	CMC 18.31.080 Permitted land uses
	18.31.080 Permitted land uses.


	Item 1 Attachment 2 Comparisons of Animal Regulations with Other Cities 07142015
	Item 1 Attachment 3 Typical Lot Animal Density Comparison with Neighboring Cities
	Future Agenda Cover Sheet for Two Meetings
	07-28-2015 Special Study Session Agenda
	Tuesday, July 28, 2015 – 6:00 p.m.
	ROLL CALL
	APPROVAL OF AGENDA

	07-28-2015 Regular Meeting Agenda
	Tuesday, July 28, 2015                                                                                                          City Council Chambers
	APPROVAL OF AGENDA
	PUBLIC COMMUNICATION – NONE




